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Customers come to Powell with their largest and most complex electrical demands. Our specialty lies in creating 
custom-designed, integrated packages to meet each client’s specific project, performance, schedule and safety 
requirements. For an advanced, large-scale oil industry project, Powell managed the design and production team, 
coordinated the activities of multiple major equipment vendors, scheduled tasks and integrated all of the activities 
that brought the design to life. 

EVERY PROJECT IS CUSTOM WITH ITS OWN SET OF CHALLENGES.
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32,035
 hours

558
 employees

14.4
 miles of interconnected wiring

772
 unique project drawings

45
 engineers

1,861
 emails



97
suppliers

3,160
feet of conduit

67
tons of air conditioning
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4,417
purchased components

10,975
pounds of copper

POWELL EXCELS IN IMAGINING POSSIBILITIES AND MAKING THEM FEASIBLE. 

Powell’s industry expertise is invaluable in first weighing and subsequently coordinating the enormous volume of critical 
detail required to produce today’s energy projects. Connecting the dots with client engineers, vendors, suppliers and 
subcontractors requires discipline, oversight and constant communication. In every Powell project, there are thousands 
of moving parts.
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84
sections of switchgear  

and motor control

POWELL’S ROLE IS TO PRODUCE A RELIABLE PACKAGED SOLUTION ON TIME. NO MATTER WHAT. 

Getting all the components and systems of a Powell project integrated, tested, shipped, installed, commissioned and 
energized is a monumental challenge. We choreograph everything from the smallest device to oversized and unwieldy 
components over long distances, guiding the inbound parts and ultimately delivering a unique custom solution to the 
jobsite. Throughout the process, we are called on to respond to unavoidable changes. Flexibility is part of our expertise.
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7
air ride tractor trailers

498,500
pounds installed

6,076
road miles traveled

6
shipping sections
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satisfied customer
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The  integrated solution highlighted in these pages was for an oil and gas customer and had a sales price under  
$3 million. Irrespective of size, each solution we provide comes with its own unique requirements and complexities.  
Our job is to deliver a satisfied customer and we do it repeatedly, many times each month.
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WHAT MAKES A SOLUTION  
A POWELL SOLUTION?

A FEW BIG IDEAS.   
A MOUNTAIN OF SMALL DETAILS.  
EXPLORED.  
REFINED.  
WORKING TOGETHER.

There’s no single answer to what makes an electrical package 
distinctively Powell. 

We’ve earned our reputation over more than 60 years by successfully 
providing thousands of different complex, custom and large-scale 
solutions to monitor, control, distribute and manage electrical systems. 

While we have worked for customers all over the world, every one of 
our projects is unique. While providing innovative technical design and 
quality manufacturing, we must also respond to critical requirements of 
cost competitiveness, reliable performance and human safety.

Every Powell solution begins with a “can-do” attitude. But that is 
underpinned by understanding, flexibility and innovation. 



This was a year of change for Powell. A year to prepare the company 
for the opportunities we see in the future. A year to expand our human 
talent investment. A year to reaffirm our long-standing core values.

A year of operational focus.
We entered the year with two new modern production facilities. Our 
new facility in Houston is providing not only much needed space for 
manufacturing and production, but also expanded capabilities for our 
Service and Product Development teams. Our new facility in Canada 
gives us complete integration solution capability in this critical North 
American oil and gas market.

With change comes both opportunity and challenge. The new 
Canadian facility was well received by the region and now our 
capability there is unmatched. Customers overwhelmingly welcomed 
our approach and we are delighted with the market response and 
increased interest in our products. So much so that we have launched 
an expansion of the facility to provide more manufacturing space  
and the ability to efficiently produce the work with which our 
customers have trusted us. 

We entered the year anticipating a transition to a new business 
system and a suite of new software tools that would standardize best 
process practices, drive efficiency and increase productivity across the 
organization. It required months of planning and the involvement of 
hundreds of employees, representing every business function and every 
business unit.

Implementing a new business system and new software tools is a 
challenge under the best of circumstances. The effort and dedication 
shown by employees throughout the company was impressive. We 
now have in place a new set of scalable business tools that will bring 
the elements of our company closer together, all while providing insight 
and a view across the business that was not possible previously.
During this past year, we completed these significant facility and 
infrastructure investments in preparation for future growth.

What is to come…
Powell solutions are best suited for applications that need to manage 
a large amount of electrical energy. The largest of these are in the oil 
and gas industry where we participate in the production of oil and gas 
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“�THIS WAS A YEAR OF CHANGE FOR POWELL. 
A YEAR TO PREPARE THE COMPANY FOR THE 
OPPORTUNITIES WE SEE IN THE FUTURE.”



both onshore and offshore, the distribution of oil and gas by pipeline 
and terminal facilities, and the processing of oil and gas in refineries 
and petrochemical plants. Additionally our solutions find application in 
municipal infrastructure investment such as electric rail, and in industries 
such as pulp and paper plants or mining and metal operations. 
Wherever electrical power is generated or distributed by electric utility 
companies, there is a need for our solutions. 

Our future looks bright. The investment in pipelines continues at a 
robust pace in both the US and Canada. At present we are in the midst 
of petrochemical investments with plans for a number of Liquid Natural 
Gas and Liquid Propane Gas terminal facilities in North America. Over 
the next few years, we expect to see significant capital investments in 
both onshore and offshore production facilities, both domestically and 
around the world.
 
Our markets are continuously evolving. We understand investment 
cycles and realize that while investment is inevitable, the timing of the 
investment will change. We understand that our customers evaluate 

many factors as they decide when and where to invest their capital.  
Our job is to prepare, to engage and to execute on market demand. 

Powell success is driven by our technical expertise and operational 
capability supporting the capital investments by our customers. 
Our past achievements and our future possibilities are grounded in 
the same values. We listen to our customers and understand their 
project objectives, challenges and concerns. We lead our customers 
to solutions that take advantage of current technologies. We position 
ourselves to provide the expert technical foundation that our customers 
require. Lastly, we prepare our company, both our people and our 
infrastructure, to be ready to support projects too large, too complex 
and too critical for our clients to trust with anyone other than Powell.

Powell is better prepared to face the future and continue our success 
than at any time in our past. Thank you for your interest in our company.

Michael A. Lucas 
President and CEO

9



CONSOLIDATED  
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

	  		  2010 		  2011			  2012		  2013		  2014

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data
Revenues	 $ 	 524,237 	 $	 536,623		 $	 690,741	 $	 640,867	 $	 647,814
Gross Profit 		  133,778		  91,762			  132,803		  138,492		  125,474 
Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations		  24,009		  ($3,672	)		  28,743		  39,739		  19,620
Net Income (Loss)		  25,008		  ($2,715	)		  29,657		  42,076		  29,224

Per-Share Data
Continuing Operations Earnings (Loss) 		  2.05		  ($0.31	)		  2.41	 	 3.32		  1.62
Discontinued Operations Earnings		  0.09		  0.08			  0.08		  0.19		  0.80
Diluted Earnings (Loss)		  2.14		  ($0.23	)		  2.49		  3.51		  2.42

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Working Capital 		  188,351 		  197,105			  217,646		  191,717		  199,228
Total Assets 		  400,712 		  421,676			  448,312		  530,903		  541,443
Long-Term Debt 		  6,885 		  5,441			  4,355		  3,616		  3,200
Total Stockholders’ Equity 		  277,303 		  275,343			  310,103		  355,226		  371,097

Years Ended September 30,

(In thousands, except per-share data)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the 

accompanying consolidated financial statements and related 

notes. Any forward-looking statements made by or on our behalf 

are made pursuant to the safe-harbor provisions of the Private 

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Readers are cautioned 

that such forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties 

in that the actual results may differ materially from those projected 

in the forward-looking statements. For a description of the risks 

and uncertainties, please see “Cautionary Statement Regarding 

Forward-Looking Statements; Risk Factors” and “Item 1A. Risk 

Factors” included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Overview
We develop, design, manufacture and service custom-engineered 

equipment and systems for the management and control of 

electrical energy and other critical processes. Headquartered in 

Houston, Texas, we serve the oil and gas refining, offshore oil 

and gas production, petrochemical, pipeline, terminal, pulp and 

paper, mining and metals, light rail traction power, and electric 

utility markets. Revenues and costs are primarily related to custom 

engineered-to-order equipment and systems and accounted for 

under percentage of completion accounting which precludes us 

from providing detailed price and volume information.

The markets in which we participate are capital intensive 

and cyclical in nature. Cyclicality is predominantly driven by 

customer demand, global economic conditions and anticipated 

environmental or regulatory changes which affect the manner 

in which our customers proceed with capital investments. Our 

customers analyze various factors including the demand for 

oil, gas and electrical energy, the overall financial environment, 

governmental budgets, regulatory actions and environmental 

concerns. These factors influence the release of new capital 

projects by our customers, which are traditionally awarded 

in competitive bid situations. Scheduling is matched to the 

customer requirements and projects may take a number of 

months to produce; schedules also may change during the 

course of any particular project. Our operating results can be 

impacted by factors outside of our control. For example, many of 

our projects have contracting arrangements where the approval 

of engineering and design specifications may affect the timing of 

the project execution thus impacting the recognition of revenue 

and costs. In the second half of Fiscal 2014, we experienced 

schedule changes on various U.S. projects which negatively 

impacted our results as the revenues have been pushed into 

subsequent quarters. 

As of September 30, 2014, our order backlog strengthened to 

$507.1 million, an increase of approximately $69.2 million over the 

beginning of this fiscal year. Our backlog includes various projects, 

some of which are petrochemical, oil and gas construction and 

transportation infrastructure projects which take a number of 

months to produce.

The strength in the western Canadian oil and gas markets continued 

to be a major contributor to our increase in revenue in Fiscal 2014. 

We completed the construction of our new Canadian facility and 

relocated operations from our previous facility in the fall of 2013. 

The production ramp of our Canadian operations has presented 

challenges resulting in inefficiencies that have led to extended project 

delivery times, higher operating costs, gross margin deterioration 

and project revenues being pushed into Fiscal 2015. We continue to 

take actions to mitigate the risks associated with these challenges. 

On January 15, 2014, we sold Transdyn to a global provider of 

electronic toll collection systems, headquartered in Vienna, Austria. 

The purchase price from the sale of this subsidiary totaled $16.0 

million, of which we received cash of $14.4 million. The remaining 

$1.6 million was placed into an escrow account until April 2015, 

to be released subject to certain contingent obligations, and was 

recorded to other assets. We received additional cash of $0.4 

million after the final working capital adjustment was calculated in 

March 2014. We recorded a gain on this transaction of $8.6 million, 

net of tax, which has been included in income from discontinued 

operations in Fiscal 2014 in the accompanying consolidated 

statements of operations. We reclassified the assets and liabilities 

of Transdyn as held for sale within the accompanying consolidated 

balance sheets as of September 30, 2013 and presented the results 

of these operations as income from discontinued operations, net 

of tax, for each of the accompanying consolidated statements of 

operations. Accordingly, we have removed Transdyn from the 

Results of Operations discussions below. For more information 

about this disposition, see Note N of the Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

In the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2013, we recovered approximately 

$5.1 million related to one large project at Powell Canada, of 

which approximately $3.8 million was recorded as revenue and the 

remaining $1.3 million was related to amounts recorded to other 

assets in prior periods. This recovery related to cost overruns on a 

large project with execution challenges which negatively impacted 

revenue and gross profit in Fiscal 2012.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2014 Compared to 
Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2013 

Revenue and Gross Profit
Revenues increased 1.1% or $6.9 million, to $647.8 million in Fiscal 

2014. Domestic revenues decreased 2.5%, or $9.3 million, to 

$365.1 million in Fiscal 2014 primarily due to the mix of projects and 

international revenues increased 6.1%, or $16.3 million, to $282.7 

million in Fiscal 2014. The expansion of our Canadian operations 

contributed to the increase in international revenues. Revenues from 

industrial customers increased $18.8 million to $474.4 million in 

Fiscal 2014. Revenues from public and private utilities decreased 

$11.6 million to $127.0 million in Fiscal 2014. Revenues from 

municipal and transit projects decreased $0.3 million to $46.3 million 

in Fiscal 2014. Additionally, revenues in Fiscal 2013 were favorably 

impacted by the recovery of $3.8 million related to cost overruns 

from a previous year on a large industrial project.
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Gross profit decreased 9.4%, or $13.0 million, to $125.5 million in 

Fiscal 2014. Gross profit as a percentage of revenues decreased to 

19.4% in Fiscal 2014, compared to 21.6% in Fiscal 2013 primarily 

due to higher costs resulting from the efficiency and utilization 

challenges associated with the ramp of our Canadian operations. 

Additionally, we incurred higher operating costs associated with 

inefficiencies from the re-implementation of our existing ERP system 

and added a suite of new software tools to expand our Business 

Systems. These higher costs were partially offset by various supply 

chain and productivity initiatives. Gross profit for Fiscal 2013 was 

favorably impacted by the $3.8 million recovery from the project 

discussed above.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $8.0 

million to $87.8 million in Fiscal 2014, compared to Fiscal 2013, 

primarily due to increased personnel costs, travel and administrative 

expenses and bad debts. Selling, general and administrative 

expenses, as a percentage of revenues, increased to 13.5% in 

Fiscal 2014, compared to 12.4% in Fiscal 2013. This increase in 

selling, general and administrative expense was partially offset by a 

decrease in depreciation expense as our existing Business Systems 

became fully depreciated in December 2012 and the favorable 

impact of the capitalization of certain personnel costs associated 

with the development and implementation of our new Business 

Systems, which went live in May 2014. However, going forward, 

the favorable impact of depreciation expense and capitalization of 

certain personnel costs will no longer be realized.

Amortization of Intangible Assets
Amortization of intangible assets decreased to $0.8 million in Fiscal 

2014 compared to $1.7 million in Fiscal 2013 primarily due to the 

amendment to the supply agreement which is discussed in Note 

E of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included 

elsewhere in this Annual Report. 

Other Income
We recorded other income of $1.5 million in Fiscal 2014 which 

represents the amortization of the deferred gain from the amendment 

to the supply agreement discussed above. We did not record other 

income in Fiscal 2013.

Income Tax Provision
Our provision for income taxes for continuing operations was $11.1 

million in Fiscal 2014, compared to $7.4 million in Fiscal 2013. The 

effective tax rate in Fiscal 2014 was 36.1%, which approximates the 

combined U.S. federal and state statutory rates as the majority of our 

income is attributable to the U.S. Additionally, the Federal Research 

and Development Tax Credit (R&D Credit) expired December 31, 

2013. The effective tax rate for Fiscal 2013 was 15.7% and was 

favorably impacted by the release of the $7 million valuation 

allowance recorded as an offset to the prior years’ Canadian pre-

tax losses and the R&D Credit as well as the utilization of certain 

foreign tax credits. For further information on the effective tax rate 

for Fiscal 2013, see Note H of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Income from Continuing Operations
In Fiscal 2014, we recorded income from continuing operations 

of $19.6 million, or $1.62 per diluted share, compared to $39.7 

million, or $3.32 per diluted share, in Fiscal 2013. This decrease in 

income from continuing operations was primarily due to efficiency 

and utilization challenges associated with the ramp of our Canadian 

operations, higher operating costs associated with inefficiencies 

from the re-implementation of our existing ERP system and the mix 

of projects in process at our domestic operations.

Income from Discontinued Operations
In Fiscal 2014, we recorded $9.6 million, or $0.80 per diluted 

share, of income from discontinued operations compared to $2.3 

million, or $0.19 per diluted share, in Fiscal 2013 as the current 

fiscal year includes the gain on the sale. For additional information 

about this disposition, see Note N of the Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Backlog
The order backlog at September 30, 2014 was $507.1 million, 

compared to $437.9 million at September 30, 2013. New orders 

placed in Fiscal 2014 totaled $725.8 million compared to $715.7 

million in Fiscal 2013. The year over year increase in new orders was 

primarily due to the continued strength in oil and gas production and 

petrochemical and pipeline projects.

Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to 
Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2012 

Revenue and Gross Profit
Revenues decreased 7.2%, or $49.9 million, to $640.9 million 

in Fiscal 2013 compared to Fiscal 2012. Domestic revenues 

decreased by 3.7%, or $14.6 million, to $374.4 million in Fiscal 2013 

and international revenues decreased 11.7%, or $35.3 million, to 

$266.5 million in Fiscal 2013. Revenues decreased primarily due 

to the completion of certain complex domestic and international 

petrochemical and oil and gas construction projects that were in 

process during Fiscal 2012. However, revenues in Fiscal 2013 

were favorably impacted by the recovery of $3.8 million related to 

cost overruns on a large industrial project at Powell Canada. This 

Canadian project experienced execution challenges in the first 

half of Fiscal 2012, which negatively impacted revenue and gross 

profit in Fiscal 2012. Revenues from public and private utilities 

increased $22.8 million to $138.6 million in Fiscal 2013. Revenues 

from industrial customers decreased $70.7 million to $455.6 

million in Fiscal 2013. Revenues from municipal and transit projects 

decreased $2.0 million to $46.6 million in Fiscal 2013. 

Gross profit increased 4.3%, or $5.7 million, to $138.5 million in 

Fiscal 2013. Gross profit as a percentage of revenues increased to 

21.6% in Fiscal 2013, compared to 19.2% in Fiscal 2012. These 

increases were primarily driven by the recovery from the Canadian 

contract settlement discussed above, the margins associated with 

the mix of projects in process during Fiscal 2012 and 2013, as well 

as the increased focus on cost reduction activities.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $2.7 million 

to $79.7 million in Fiscal 2013. Selling, general and administrative 

expenses, as a percentage of revenues, increased to 12.4% in 

Fiscal 2013 from 11.1% in Fiscal 2012. This increase was primarily 

related to increased personnel costs and increased long-term 

incentive compensation resulting from higher levels of operating 

performance over the three-year performance cycle. This increase 

in selling, general and administrative expenses was offset by 

a decrease in depreciation expense as our Business Systems 

became fully depreciated in December 2012. Additionally, selling, 

general and administrative costs for Fiscal 2013 were favorably 

impacted by the capitalization of certain personnel costs in Fiscal 

2013 associated with the development and implementation 

of our new Business Systems. However, the favorable impact 

of depreciation expense and capitalization of certain personnel 

costs will no longer be realized as the Business Systems were 

implemented in Fiscal 2014. 

Amortization of Intangible Assets
Amortization of intangible assets decreased to $1.7 million in Fiscal 

2013, compared to $2.6 million in Fiscal 2012, as certain intangible 

assets became fully amortized. 

Restructuring and Relocation Costs
During Fiscal 2013, we recorded restructuring and relocation 

charges totaling $3.9 million. We incurred approximately $2.8 million 

in Fiscal 2013 related to relocation efforts in connection with the 

construction of our new facility in Houston, Texas and our new 

facility in Acheson, Alberta, Canada. These costs were primarily 

related to the relocation of our operations, the loss on the sublease, 

and the abandonment of leasehold improvements on the previously 

occupied facilities in the second half of Fiscal 2013. The construction 

of our two new facilities was substantially completed in September 

2013 and we relocated the majority of our operations and personnel 

from their previously leased facilities. 

In the third quarter of Fiscal 2013, we recorded and paid $1.1 

million related to severance at our United Kingdom operations. 

These operations were negatively impacted by market conditions 

and competitive pressures in the international markets in which 

they operate; therefore, we exited certain non-core operations and 

eliminated certain positions to better align our workforce with current 

market conditions.

Gain on Settlement
In March 2013, we settled a lawsuit we had filed against the 

previous owners of Powell Canada in the amount of $1.7 million, 

which was received in April 2013. There was no gain on settlement 

in Fiscal 2012.

Income Tax Provision 
Our provision for income taxes reflected an effective tax rate on 

earnings before income taxes of 15.7% in Fiscal 2013 compared 

to 38.6% in Fiscal 2012. The effective tax rate for Fiscal 2013 

was favorably impacted by the release of the $7 million valuation 

allowance recorded as an offset to the prior years’ Canadian pre-

tax losses. We believe that it is more likely than not that the market 

conditions and our operating results going forward will allow us to 

realize the deferred tax assets associated with the prior year losses 

in Canada. The rate for Fiscal 2013 was also favorably impacted 

by the Federal Research and Development Tax Credit and the 

utilization of certain foreign tax credits. The effective tax rate for 

Fiscal 2012 was negatively impacted by our inability to record a tax 

benefit related to pre-tax losses in Canada. For further information 

on the effective tax rate for Fiscal 2013, see Note H of the Notes 

to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this 

Annual Report.

Income from Continuing Operations
In Fiscal 2013, we recorded income from continuing operations of 

$39.7 million, or $3.32 per diluted share, compared to $28.7 million, 

or $2.41 per diluted share, in Fiscal 2012. Income from continuing 

operations in Fiscal 2013 was positively impacted by the recovery of 

$3.8 million from the Canadian contract settlement and the favorable 

tax benefits discussed above. 

Income from Discontinued Operations
In Fiscal 2013, we recorded $2.3 million, or $0.19 per diluted share, 

of income from discontinued operations compared to $0.9 million, 

or $0.08 per diluted share, in Fiscal 2012. For additional information 

about this disposition, see Note N of the Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements.

Backlog
The order backlog at September 30, 2013, was $437.9 million, 

compared to $365.9 million at September 30, 2012. New orders 

placed during Fiscal 2013 totaled $715.7 million compared to 

$659.9 million in Fiscal 2012. The backlog for Fiscal 2013 increased 

primarily due to continued strength in oil and gas production 

projects, refining projects and transportation markets. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash and cash equivalents decreased to $103.1 mill ion at 

September 30, 2014, compared to $107.4 million at September 

30, 2013. As of September 30, 2014, current assets exceeded 

current liabilities by 2.3 times and our debt to total capitalization 

ratio was 0.85%.

We have a $75.0 million revolving credit facility in the U.S., which 

expires in December 2016. As of September 30, 2014, there were 

no amounts borrowed under this line of credit. We also have a $9.0 

million revolving credit facility in Canada. At September 30, 2014, 

there was no balance outstanding under the Canadian revolving 

credit facility. Total long-term debt and capital lease obligations, 

including current maturities, totaled $3.2 million at September 

30, 2014, compared to $3.6 million at September 30, 2013. Total 

letters of credit outstanding were $21.5 million and $20.1 million 

at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which reduce our 

availability under our U.S. credit facility and our Canadian revolving 
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credit facility. Amounts available at September 30, 2014 under 

the U.S. and Canadian revolving credit facilities were $53.5 million 

and $9.0 million, respectively. For further information regarding our 

debt, see Notes F and G of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Approximately $5.9 million of our cash at September 30, 2014 was 

held outside of the United States for international operations. It is 

our intention to indefinitely reinvest all current and future foreign 

earnings internationally in order to ensure sufficient working capital 

and support and expand these international operations. In the event 

that we elect to repatriate some or all of the foreign earnings that 

were previously deemed to be indefinitely reinvested outside the 

U.S., under current tax laws we would incur additional tax expense 

upon such repatriation.

We believe that cash available and borrowing capacity under our 

existing credit facilities should be sufficient to finance anticipated 

operating activities, capital improvements and expansions, as well 

as debt repayments, for the foreseeable future. We continue to 

monitor the factors that drive our markets and strive to maintain our 

leadership and competitive advantage in the markets we serve while 

aligning our cost structures with market conditions.

Operating Activities
During Fiscal 2014, net cash provided by operating activities was 

$9.1 million. During Fiscal 2013, net cash provided by operating 

activities was $91.4 million and in Fiscal 2012, net cash used in 

operating activities was $6.0 million. Cash flow from operations is 

primarily influenced by demand for our products and services and 

is impacted as our progress payment terms with our customers 

are matched with the payment terms with our suppliers. During 

Fiscal 2014, our cash from operations decreased over Fiscal 2013, 

primarily due to the timing of billing and collection of contracts 

receivable based on the progress billing milestones, an increase 

in inventories and a decrease in accounts payable and income 

taxes payable. The increase in inventories resulted in part from 

supply chain inefficiencies resulting from the re-implementation of 

our Business Systems. These uses of cash were partially offset by 

the $10.0 million received from the amended supply agreement. 

For further information regarding the amended supply agreement, 

see Note E of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

included elsewhere in this Annual Report. Additionally in Fiscal 2013, 

we received $6.8 million in contract settlements related to Fiscal 

2012 matters. During Fiscal 2012, the cash used in operations of 

$6.0 million was primarily the result of increased unbilled contract 

receivables based on progress billing milestones. 

Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment during Fiscal 2014 

totaled $16.5 million compared to $74.4 million and $29.1 million 

in Fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively. A significant portion of the 

investments in Fiscal 2012 and 2013 were to acquire land and build 

facilities in the United States and Canada to support our continued 

expansion in our key markets, including the oil and gas markets and 

Canadian oil sands region. Costs related to the re-implementation 

and additional software added to our Business Systems were 

incurred during Fiscal 2013 and placed into service in the third 

quarter of Fiscal 2014. 

Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities was $12.5 million in Fiscal 2014 

and $0.5 million in Fiscal 2013. Net cash provided by financing 

activities was $1.3 million during Fiscal 2012 due to cash being 

received from the exercise of stock options. The increase in the use 

of cash in Fiscal 2014 was primarily driven by the payment of $12.0 

million in cash dividends.

Contractual and Other Obligations
At September 30, 2014, our long-term contractual obligations were limited to debt and leases. The table below details our commitments by 

type of obligation, including interest if applicable, and the period that the payment will become due (in thousands).

As of September 30, 2014,
Payments Due by Period:

Long-Term Debt
Obligations

Operating Lease
Obligations Total

Less than 1 year  	 $	 406 	 $	 4,155 	 $	 4,561

1 to 3 years 	 	 809 	 5,490 	 6,299

3 to 5 years 	 	 806 	 3,036 	 3,842

More than 5 years 	 	 	 	 1,202 	 	 5,586 	 6,788

Total long-term contractual obligations  	 $	 3,223 	 $	 18,267 	 $	 21,490

The lease on our previously occupied Canadian facility does not expire until July 2023; however, we have sublet that facility through July 2019. 

As of September 30, 2014, the total unrecognized tax benefit related to uncertain tax positions was $4.0 million. We estimate that none 

of this will be paid within the next 12 months. However, we believe that it is reasonably possible that within the next 12 months, the total 

unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by approximately 1% due to the expiration of certain statutes of limitations in various state and local 

jurisdictions. We are unable to make reasonably reliable estimates regarding the timing of future cash outflows, if any, associated with the 

remaining unrecognized tax benefits. 
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Other Commercial Commitments
We are contingently liable for secured and unsecured letters of credit 

of $24.2 million as of September 30, 2014, of which $21.5 million 

reduces our borrowing capacity.

The following table reflects potential cash outflows that may result 

in the event that we are unable to perform under our contracts (in 

thousands):

As of September 30, 2014,
Payments Due by Period:

Letters of 
Credit

Less than 1 year 	 $	 12,939

1 to 3 years 	 8,340

More than 3 years 	 2,893

Total long-term commercial obligations 	 $	 24,172

We also had performance and maintenance bonds totaling $298.7 

million that were outstanding at September 30, 2014. Performance 

and maintenance bonds are primarily used to guarantee our contract 

performance to our customers.

Outlook
The markets in which we participate are capital-intensive and cyclical 

in nature. Cyclicality is predominantly driven by customer demand, 

global economic conditions and anticipated environmental or 

regulatory changes which affect the manner in which our customers 

proceed with capital investments. Our customers analyze various 

factors including the demand for oil, gas and electrical energy, the 

overall financial environment, governmental budgets, regulatory 

actions and environmental concerns. These factors influence 

the release of new capital projects by our customers, which are 

traditionally awarded in competitive bid situations. Scheduling is 

matched to the customer requirements; and projects may take a 

number of months to produce; schedules also may change during 

the course of any particular project.

Growth in demand for energy is expected to continue over the long 

term. This, when coupled with the need for replacement of existing 

infrastructure that is nearing the end of its life cycle, demonstrates 

a continued need for products and services produced by us. Our 

orders over the past year have been solid, driven primarily by the 

relative stability in the oil and gas industry overall, along with the 

specific demand associated with Canadian oil sands related 

projects. We continue to experience timing challenges in the near-

term related to the awarding of large projects due to various global 

market conditions and industry constraints. However, the long-term 

outlook for continued opportunities for our products and services 

remains positive; even though the timing and pricing of many of 

these projects are difficult to predict. 

Our operating results are frequently impacted by the timing and 

resolution of change orders and project close-out which could 

cause gross margins to improve or deteriorate during the period in 

which these items are approved and finalized with customers. Our 

operating results are also impacted by factors outside of our control, 

such as our projects that have contract arrangements where the 

approval of engineering and design specifications may affect the 

timing of the project execution. 

The western Canadian oil and gas market continues to provide 

project opportunities for Powell. Demand for our products and 

solutions in this market are placing pressure on our production 

ramp plan. We completed the construction of our new Acheson, 

Alberta facility and relocated operations from our previous facility in 

the fall of 2013. The production ramp of our Canadian operations 

has presented and may continue to present challenges resulting in 

inefficiencies and extended project delivery times. We believe the 

challenges from the ramp of our Canadian operations will likely result 

in higher costs, gross margin deterioration and delay the recognition 

of revenues into Fiscal 2015. We continue to take actions to mitigate 

the risks associated with these challenges.

We are in the process of expanding our manufacturing facility 

in Acheson, Alberta, Canada. The expansion is expected to cost 

approximately $33 million and is expected to be funded from our 

existing cash and cash equivalents and future cash flows from 

operations. We expect the expansion of our Canadian facility to be 

completed in early Fiscal 2015. 

We believe that cash available and borrowing capacity under our 

existing credit facilities should be sufficient to finance anticipated 

operating activities, capital improvements and debt repayments for 

the foreseeable future. We continue to monitor our markets and will 

strive to maintain our leadership and competitive advantage in the 

markets we serve. 
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Effects of Inflation
We are subject to inflation, which can cause increases in our 

costs of raw materials, primarily copper, aluminum and steel. 

Fixed-price contracts can limit our ability to pass these increases 

to our customers, thus negatively impacting our earnings. 

The inflation in commodity prices could potentially impact our 

operations in future years.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
We are exposed to certain market risks arising from transactions 

we have entered into in the normal course of business. These risks 

primarily relate to fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange 

rates and commodity prices.

Market Risk
We are also exposed to general market risk and its potential impact 

on accounts receivable or costs and estimated earnings in excess 

of billings on uncompleted contracts. The amounts recorded 

may be at risk if our customers’ ability to pay these obligations is 

negatively impacted by economic conditions. Our customers and 

their industries are typically EPC firms, oil and gas refining, offshore 

oil and gas production, petrochemical, pipeline, terminal, pulp and 

paper, mining and metals, light rail traction power, electric utility and 

other large industrial customers. We maintain ongoing discussions 

with customers regarding contract status with respect to payment 

status, change orders and billing terms in an effort to monitor 

collections of amounts billed. 

Commodity Price Risk
We are subject to market risk from fluctuating market prices of 

certain raw materials. While such materials are typically available 

from numerous suppliers, commodity raw materials are subject to 

price fluctuations. We attempt to pass along such commodity price 

increases to our customers on a contract-by-contract basis to avoid 

a negative effect on our profit margin. While we may do so in the 

future, we have not currently entered into any derivative contracts to 

hedge our exposure to commodity risk. We continue to experience 

price volatility with some of our key raw materials and components. 

Fixed-price contracts may limit our ability to pass cost increases to 

our customers, thus negatively impacting our earnings. Fluctuations 

in commodity prices may have a material impact on our future 

earnings and cash flows.

Foreign Currency Transaction Risk
We have operations that expose us to currency risk in the British 

Pound Sterling, the Canadian Dollar and to a lesser extent the Euro. 

Amounts invested in our foreign operations are translated into U.S. 

Dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. The 

resulting translation adjustments are recorded as accumulated other 

comprehensive income (loss), a component of stockholders’ equity 

in our consolidated balance sheets. We believe the exposure to the 

effects that fluctuating foreign currencies have on our consolidated 

results of operations is limited because the foreign operations 

primarily invoice customers and collect obligations in their respective 

currencies or U.S. Dollars. Our international operations are financed 

utilizing local credit facilities denominated in local currencies. 

Additionally, expenses associated with these transactions are 

generally contracted and paid for in the same local currencies. A 

10% unfavorable change in the U.S. Dollar exchange rate, relative 

to other functional currencies in which we operate, would not 

materially impact our consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 

2014. During Fiscal 2014, our realized foreign exchange losses were 

$1.5 million and are included in selling, general and administrative 

expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Interest Rate Risk
If we decide to borrow under one of our credit facilities, we will 

be subject to market risk resulting from changes in interest rates 

related to our floating rate bank credit facility. If we were to make 

such borrowings, a hypothetical 100 basis point increase in 

variable interest rates may result in a material impact to our financial 

statements. While we do not currently have any derivative contracts 

to hedge our exposure to interest rate risk, in the past we have 

entered and may in the future enter into such contracts. During each 

of the past three years, we have not experienced a significant effect 

on our business due to changes in interest rates.
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POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

September 30,

ASSETS  2014  2013

Current Assets: 	 	

Cash and cash equivalents 	 $	 103,118 	 $	 107,411
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,577 and $572, respectively 107,162 112,074
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts 95,970 79,420

Inventories 32,815 28,963

Income taxes receivable 2,804 3,022

Deferred income taxes 5,297 4,490

Prepaid expenses 5,870 5,893

Other current assets 4,291 658

Current assets held for sale — 15,409
Total Current Assets 357,327 357,340

Property, plant and equipment, net 156,896 144,495

Goodwill 1,003 1,003

Intangible assets, net 1,904 11,612

Deferred income taxes 11,422 9,016

Other assets 8,224 7,293

Long-term receivable (Note E) 4,667 —

Long-term assets held for sale — 144

Total Assets 	 $	 541,443 	 $	 530,903

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 	 	

Current Liabilities: 	 	

Current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 	 $	 400 	 $	 416

Income taxes payable 705 4,647

Accounts payable 70,209 55,528

Accrued salaries, bonuses and commissions 25,206 25,799

Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts 48,702 48,334

Accrued product warranty 4,557 5,282

Other accrued expenses 6,291 10,209

Deferred credit − short term (Note E) 2,029 —

Current liabilities held for sale — 17,848

Total Current Liabilities 158,099 168,063

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current maturities 2,800 3,200

Deferred compensation 4,226 3,480

Other long-term liabilities 655 730

Deferred credit − long term (Note E) 4,566 —

Long-term liabilities held for sale — 204

Total Liabilities 170,346 175,677

Commitments and Contingencies (Note G) 	

Stockholders’ Equity:

Preferred stock, par value $.01; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued — —
Common stock, par value $.01; 30,000,000 shares authorized; 12,031,243 and 
11,970,967 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 120 119

Additional paid-in capital 46,267 43,193

Retained earnings 331,213 313,987

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (6,503) (2,073)

Total Stockholders’ Equity 371,097 355,226
	 Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 	 $	 541,443 	 $	 530,903

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012

Revenues	 	 $	 647,814 	 $	 640,867 	 $	  690,741

Cost of goods sold	 522,340 502,375 557,938

Gross profit	 125,474 138,492 132,803

Selling, general and administrative expenses 87,756 79,707 76,961

Research and development expenses 7,608 7,615 6,286

Amortization of intangible assets 779 1,659 2,599

Restructuring and relocation expenses — 3,927  —

Operating income 29,331 45,584 46,957

Gain on settlement — (1,709) —

Other income (See Note E) (1,522) — —

Interest expense 178 202 272

Interest income (13) (35) (114)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 30,688 47,126 46,799

Income tax provision 11,068 7,387 18,056

Income from continuing operations 19,620 39,739 28,743

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax (Note N) 9,604 2,337 914

Net income 	 $	 29,224 	 $	 42,076 	 $	 29,657

Earnings per share: 	 	

Continuing operations 	 $	 1.63 	 $	 3.32 	 $	 2.43

Discontinued operations 0.80 0.20 0.07

	 Basic earnings per share 	 $	 2.43 	 $	 3.52 	 $	 2.50

Continuing operations 	 $	 1.62 	 $	 3.32 	 $	 2.41

Discontinued operations 0.80 0.19 0.08

	 Diluted earnings per share 	 $	 2.42 	 $	 3.51 	 $	 2.49

Weighted average shares: 	 	 	

Basic	 12,003 11,948 11,850

Diluted	 12,058 11,994 11,925

Dividends per share 	 $	 1.00 	 $	 — 	 $	 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(In thousands)

Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012

Net income 	 $	 29,224 	 $	 42,076 	       $	 29,657

Foreign currency translation adjustments (4,447) (1,719) 833

Postretirement benefit adjustment, net of tax 17 25 159

Comprehensive income 	 $	 24,794 	 $	 40,382 	        $	 30,649

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands)

Common Stock Additional 
Paid-In  
Capital

Retained  
Earnings

Accumulated Other  
Comprehensive  

Income/(Loss) TotalShares Amount

Balance, September 30, 2011 11,752 	 $	 117 	 $	 34,343 	 $	 242,254 	 $	 (1,371) 	 $	 275,343

Net income — — — 29,657 — 29,657

Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — — 833 833

Exercise of stock options 98 1 1,798 — — 1,799

Stock-based compensation 7 — 1,004 — — 1,004

Excess tax benefit from share-based 
compensation — — 743 — — 743

Shares withheld in lieu of employee  
tax withholding	 — — (154) — — (154)

Amortization of restricted stock — — 135 — — 135

Issuance of restricted stock 74 1 583 — — 584

Retirement of stock (15) — — — — —

Postretirement benefit adjustment,  
net of tax of $20 — — — — 159 159

Balance, September 30, 2012 11,916 	 $	 119 	 $	 38,452 	 $	 271,911 	 $	 (379)	 $	 310,103

Net income — — — 42,076 — 42,076

Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — — (1,719) (1,719)

Stock-based compensation 39 — 2,369 — — 2,369

Excess tax benefit from share-based 
compensation — — 464 — — 464

Shares withheld in lieu of employee  
tax withholding — — (187) — — (187)

Amortization of restricted stock — — 2,095 — — 2,095

Issuance of restricted stock 17 — — — — —

Retirement of stock (1) — — — — —

Postretirement benefit adjustment,  
net of tax of $14	 — — — — 25 25

Balance, September 30, 2013	 11,971 	 $	 119 	 $	 43,193 	 $	 313,987 	 $	 (2,073)	 $	 355,226

Net income — — — 29,224 — 29,224

Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — — (4,447) (4,447)

Stock-based compensation 44 — 3,385 — — 3,385

Excess tax benefit from share-based 
compensation — — 407 — — 407

Shares withheld in lieu of employee tax 
withholding — — (718) — — (718)

Issuance of restricted stock 16 1 — — — 1

Dividends paid — — — (11,998) — (11,998)

Postretirement benefit adjustment,  
net of tax of $9 — — — — 17 17

Balance, September 30, 2014 12,031 	 $	 120 	 $	 46,267 	 $	 331,213 	 $	 (6,503)	 $	 371,097

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012

Operating Activities:

Net income 	 $	 29,224 	 $	 42,076 	 $	 29,657
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 11,386 8,519 10,465
Amortization 779 1,671 2,612
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax (8,563) — —
Stock-based compensation 3,385 4,464 1,723
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation (407) (464) (743)
Bad debt expense/(recovery) 1,074 (544) 842
Deferred income tax benefit (3,212) (6,720) (1,422)
Gain on amended supply agreement (1,522) — —

Cash received from amended supply agreement 10,000 — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    
Accounts receivable, net 1,959 5,838 (16,209)
Costs and billings in excess of estimates on uncompleted contracts (17,089) 23,054 (42,247)
Inventories (3,959) 3,881 3,948
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,101) (3,530) 4,821
Accounts payable and income taxes payable 1,002 13,029 (5,293)
Accrued liabilities (4,997) (633) 6,411
Other, net 1,524 784 (530)
Net assets held for sale (10,355) — —

Net cash provided (used in) by operating activities 9,128 91,425 (5,965)

Investing Activities:    
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 118 885 195
Proceeds from sale of Transdyn 14,819 — —
Decrease in cash held in escrow — — 1,000
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (16,495) (74,369) (29,063)

Net cash used in investing activities (1,558) (73,484) (27,868)

Financing Activities:

Payments on industrial development revenue bonds (400) (400) (400)
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation 407 464 743
Shares withheld in lieu of employee tax withholding (499) (187) (154)
Dividends paid (11,998) — —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options — — 1,799
Payments on short-term and other financing (16) (329) (717)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (12,506) (452) 1,271

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,936) 17,489 (32,562)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 643 (118) (864)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 107,411 90,040 123,466
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 	 $	 103,118 	 $	 107,411 	 $	 90,040

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION
Powell Industries, Inc. (we, us, our, Powell or the Company) was 

incorporated in the state of Delaware in 2004 as a successor to a 

Nevada company incorporated in 1968. The Nevada corporation 

was the successor to a company founded by William E. Powell 

in 1947, which merged into the Company in 1977. Our major 

subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned, include: Powell 

Electrical Systems, Inc.; Powell (UK) Limited (formerly Switchgear & 

Instrumentation Limited); Powell Canada Inc. and Powell Industries 

International, B.V.

We develop, design, manufacture and service custom-engineered 

equipment and systems for the distribution, control and monitoring 

of electrical energy designed to (1) distribute, monitor and 

control the flow of electrical energy and (2) provide protection to 

motors, transformers and other electrically powered equipment. 

Our principal products include integrated power control room 

substations (PCRs®), custom-engineered modules, electrical 

houses (E-Houses), traditional and arc-resistant distribution 

switchgear and control gear, medium-voltage circuit breakers, 

monitoring and control communications systems, motor control 

centers and bus duct systems. These products are designed for 

application voltages ranging from 480 volts to 38,000 volts and 

are used in oil and gas refining, offshore oil and gas production, 

petrochemical, pipeline, terminal, pulp and paper, mining and 

metals, light rail traction power, electric utility and other heavy 

industrial markets. Our product scope includes designs tested to 

meet both U.S. standards (ANSI) and international standards (IEC). 

We assist customers by providing value-added services such as 

spare parts, field service inspection, installation, commissioning, 

modification and repair, retrofit and retrofill components for existing 

systems and replacement circuit breakers for switchgear that is 

obsolete or that is no longer produced by the original manufacturer. 

We seek to establish long-term relationships with the end users of 

our systems as well as the design and construction engineering 

firms contracted by those end users.

References to Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 used 

throughout these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

relate to our fiscal years ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and 

2012, respectively.

We previously reported two business segments: Electrical Power 

Products and Process Control Systems. In January 2014, we 

sold our wholly owned subsidiary Transdyn Inc. (Transdyn), 

which was reported in our Process Controls business segment. 

We reclassified the assets and liabilities of Transdyn as held for 

sale within the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of 

September 30, 2013 and presented the results of these operations 

as income from discontinued operations, net of tax, for each 

of the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 

While this sale did not result in a material disposition of assets 

or material reduction to income before income taxes relative to 

our consolidated financial statements, the revenues, gross profit, 

income before income taxes and assets of Transdyn comprised 

a significant majority of those respective amounts previously 

reported in our Process Control Systems business segment. As we 

previously reported only two business segments, Electrical Power 

Products and Process Control Systems, we have removed the 

presentation of business segments in these Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements. All current and historical financial information 

presented exclude the financial information for Transdyn or 

presents it as discontinued operations where applicable. For more 

information about this disposition, see Note N. 

B. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Powell 

and our wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and 

transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassifications
Reclassifications have been made in prior years’ Consolidated 

Statements of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statements of 

Stockholders’ Equity to conform and expand the presentation of 

shares withheld in lieu of employee tax withholding in the current 

year. These reclassifications have not resulted in any changes to 

previously reported cash flows or equity for any periods.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of f inancial statements in conformity with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. 

GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions 

that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial 

statements and accompanying footnotes. The most significant 

estimates used in our financial statements affect revenue and cost 

recognition for construction contracts, the allowance for doubtful 

accounts, provision for excess and obsolete inventory, goodwill 

and other intangible assets, self-insurance, warranty accruals 

and income taxes. The amounts recorded for insurance claims, 

warranties, legal, income taxes and other contingent liabilities require 

judgments regarding the amount of expenses that will ultimately be 

incurred. We base our estimates on historical experience and on 

various other assumptions, as well as the specific circumstances 

surrounding these contingent liabilities, in evaluating the amount 

of liability that should be recorded. Additionally, the recognition of 

deferred tax assets requires estimates related to future income and 

other assumptions regarding timing and future profitability. Estimates 

may change as new events occur, additional information becomes 

available or operating environments change. Actual results may 

differ from our estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits with 

banks and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three 

months or less.
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Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information  
(in thousands):

Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012

Cash paid during the period for: 	 	 	

Interest, net of interest income 	 $	 149 	 $	 164 	 $	 141

Income taxes, net of refunds 18,889 14,783 12,104

Non-cash capital expenditures 13,527 2,807 —

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Financial instruments include cash, cash equivalents, receivables, 

deferred compensation, payables and debt obligations. Except as 

described below, due to the short-term nature of account receivables 

and account payables, the book value is representative of their fair 

value. The carrying value of debt approximates fair value as interest 

rates are indexed to the Federal Funds Rate, the Canadian Prime 

Rate or the bank’s prime rate.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated net of allowances for doubtful 

accounts. We maintain and continually assess the adequacy of the 

allowance for doubtful accounts representing our estimate for losses 

resulting from the inability of our customers to pay amounts due to 

us. This estimated allowance is based on historical experience of 

uncollected accounts, the level of past due accounts, the overall 

level of outstanding accounts receivable, information about specific 

customers with respect to their inability to make payments and 

expectations of future conditions that could impact the collectability 

of accounts receivable. Future changes in our customers’ operating 

performance and cash flows, or in general economic conditions, 

could have an impact on their ability to fully pay these amounts, 

which could have a material impact on our operating results. In most 

cases, receivables are not collateralized. However, we utilize letters 

of credit to secure payment on sales when possible. At September 

30, 2014 and 2013, accounts receivable included retention amounts 

of $6.7 million and $9.7 million, respectively. Retention amounts are 

in accordance with applicable provisions of contracts and become 

due upon completion of contractual requirements. Approximately 

$0.4 million of the retained amount at September 30, 2014, is 

expected to be collected subsequent to September 30, 2015.

Costs and Estimated Earnings in Excess of Billings on 
Uncompleted Contracts
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted 

contracts arise when revenues are recorded on a percentage-

of-completion basis but cannot be invoiced under the terms of 

the contract. Such amounts are invoiced upon completion of 

contractual milestones.

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted 

contracts also include certain costs associated with unapproved 

change orders. These costs are included when the approval of 

the change order is probable. Amounts are carried at the lower of 

cost or net realizable value. Revenue is recognized to the extent of 

costs incurred when recovery is probable. The amounts recorded 

involve the use of judgments and estimates; thus, actual recoverable 

amounts could differ from original assumptions. 

In accordance with industry practice, assets and liabilities related to 

costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted 

contracts, as well as billings in excess of costs and estimated 

earnings on uncompleted contracts, have been classified as current. 

The contract cycle for certain long-term contracts may extend 

beyond one year; thus, collection of amounts related to these 

contracts may extend beyond one year.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market using weighted-

average methods and include the cost of materials, labor and 

manufacturing overhead. We use estimates in determining the 

level of reserves required to state inventory at the lower of cost 

or market. Our estimates are based on market activity levels, 

production requirements, the physical condition of products and 

technological innovation. Changes in any of these factors may result 

in adjustments to the carrying value of inventory.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated 

using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 

the assets. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged 

to expense when incurred. Expenditures for major renewals and 

improvements, which extend the useful lives of existing equipment, 

are capitalized and depreciated. Upon retirement or disposition of 

property, plant and equipment, the cost and related accumulated 

depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain 

or loss is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We review property, plant and equipment for impairment whenever 

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value 

may not be realizable. If an evaluation is required, the estimated 

future undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset are 

compared to the asset’s carrying amount to determine if an 

impairment of such asset is necessary. This requires us to make 

long-term forecasts of the future revenues and the costs related to 

the assets subject to review. Forecasts require assumptions about 

demand for our products and future market conditions. Estimating 

future cash flows requires significant judgment and our projections 

may vary from cash flows eventually realized. Future events and 

unanticipated changes to assumptions could require a provision for 

impairment in a future period. The effect of any impairment would 

be reflected in income (loss) from operations in the Consolidated 

Statements of Operations. In addition, we estimate the useful lives 

of our property, plant and equipment and periodically review these 

estimates to determine whether these lives are appropriate. 

Intangible Assets 
The costs of intangible assets with determinable useful lives are 

amortized over their estimated useful lives. When certain events 

or changes in operating conditions occur, the estimated future 

undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset are compared 

to the asset’s carrying amount to determine if an impairment of such 

assets is necessary. For intangible assets that are amortized, we 

review their estimated useful lives and evaluate whether events and 

circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining useful life. For 
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additional information regarding our intangible assets and related 

impairment, see Note E herein.

Goodwill 
Goodwill is evaluated for impairment annually, or immediately 

if conditions indicate that impairment could exist. The evaluation 

requires a two-step impairment test to identify potential goodwill 

impairment and measure the amount of a goodwill impairment loss. 

The first step of the test compares the fair value of a reporting unit 

with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the carrying amount 

of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the 

goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the amount of 

the impairment loss. Both steps of the goodwill impairment testing 

involve significant estimates.

Income Taxes
We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method, 

based on the income tax laws and rates in the countries in which 

operations are conducted and income is earned. This approach 

requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for 

the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences 

between the carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and 

liabilities. Developing our provision for income taxes requires 

significant judgment and expertise in federal, international and 

state income tax laws, regulations and strategies, including the 

determination of deferred tax assets and liabilities and, if necessary, 

any valuation allowances that may be required for deferred tax 

assets. We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred 

tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. 

Although our Canadian operations reported a loss for Fiscal 2014, 

we believe that the deferred tax asset recorded as of September 

30, 2014, is realizable through future reversals of existing taxable 

temporary differences and future taxable income. The recognition of 

deferred tax assets requires estimates related to future income and 

other assumptions regarding timing and future profitability. Estimates 

may change as new events occur, additional information becomes 

available or operating environments change. We will continue to 

assess the adequacy of the valuation allowance on a quarterly basis. 

Our judgments and tax strategies are subject to audit by various 

taxing authorities.

The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize 

the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and 

deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of 

events that have been recognized in an entity’s financial statements 

or tax returns. We recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax 

position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will 

be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on 

the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in 

the financial statements from such a position should be measured 

based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood 

of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Accounting literature 

also provides guidance on derecognition of income tax assets and 

liabilities, classification of current and deferred income tax assets 

and liabilities, accounting for interest and penalties associated with 

tax positions, and income tax disclosures. Judgment is required in 

assessing the future tax consequences of events that have been 

recognized in our financial statements or tax returns. Variations in the 

actual outcome of these future tax consequences could materially 

impact our financial statements.

Revenue Recognition
Our revenues are primarily generated from engineering and 

manufacturing of custom products under long-term contracts 

that may last from one month to several years, depending on the 

contract. Revenues from long-term contracts are recognized on 

the percentage-of-completion method of accounting. Occasionally 

a contract may require that we segment the project into specific 

deliverables for revenue recognition. Segmenting a contract may 

result in different interim rates of profitability for each scope of 

service than if we had recognized revenue on a combined basis.

Under the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, 

revenues are recognized as work is performed. The estimated 

completion to date is calculated by multiplying the total contract 

price by the percentage of performance to date, which is based on 

total costs or total labor dollars incurred to date compared to the total 

estimated costs or total labor dollars estimated at completion. The 

method used to determine the percentage of completion is typically 

the cost method, unless the labor method is a more accurate 

method of measuring the progress of the project. Application of 

the percentage-of-completion method of accounting requires the 

use of estimates of costs to be incurred for the performance of the 

contract. Contract costs include all direct material costs, direct labor 

costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance, such 

as indirect labor, supplies, tools, repairs and all costs associated 

with operation of equipment. The cost estimation process is based 

upon the professional knowledge and experience of our engineers, 

project managers and financial professionals. Factors that are 

considered in estimating the work to be completed and ultimate 

contract recovery include the availability and productivity of labor, 

the nature and complexity of the work to be performed, the effect of 

change orders, the availability of materials, the effect of any delays 

on our project performance and the recoverability of any claims. 

Changes in job performance, job conditions, estimated profitability 

and final contract settlements, including our estimate of liquidated 

damages, if any, may result in revisions to costs and income, with 

their effects being recognized in the period in which the revisions 

are determined. Whenever revisions of estimated contract costs 

and contract values indicate that the contract costs will exceed 

estimated revenues, thus creating a loss, a provision for the total 

estimated loss is recorded in that period.

Revenues associated with maintenance, repair and service contracts 

are recognized when the services are performed. Expenses related 

to these types of services are recognized as incurred.
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Warranties 
We provide for estimated warranty costs with the recognition of 

revenue based upon historical rates applicable to individual product 

lines. In addition, specific provisions are made when the costs of 

such warranties are expected to exceed accruals. Our standard 

terms and conditions of sale include a warranty for parts and service 

for the earlier of 18 months from the date of shipment or 12 months 

from the date of energization, whichever occurs first. Occasionally 

projects require warranty terms that are longer than our standard 

terms due to the nature of the project. Extended warranty terms 

may be negotiated and included in our contracts. We use past 

experience and historical claims to determine the estimated liability. 

Actual results could differ from our estimate.

Research and Development Expense
Research and development activit ies are directed toward 

the development of new products and processes as well as 

improvements in existing products and processes. These costs, 

which primarily include salaries, contract services and supplies, are 

expensed as incurred. Such amounts were $7.6 million, $7.6 million 

and $6.3 million in Fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation
The functional currency for our foreign subsidiaries is the local 

currency in which the entity is located. The financial statements of 

all subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the U.S. Dollar 

have been translated into U.S. Dollars. All assets and liabilities of 

foreign operations are translated into U.S. Dollars using year-end 

exchange rates, and all revenues and expenses are translated at 

average rates during the respective period. The U.S. Dollar results 

that arise from such translation, as well as exchange gains and 

losses on intercompany balances of a long-term investment nature, 

are included in the cumulative currency translation adjustments in 

accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity.

Stock-Based Compensation
We measure stock-based compensation cost at the grant date 

based on the fair value of the award. Compensation expense is 

recognized over the period during which the employee is required 

to provide service in exchange for the awards, typically the 

vesting period. Excess income tax benefits related to share-based 

compensation expense that must be recognized directly in equity 

are considered financing rather than operating cash flow activities.

New Accounting Standards
From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by 

the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the FASB), which are 

adopted by us as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise 

discussed, management believes that the impact of recently issued 

standards, which are not yet effective, will not have a material impact 

on our consolidated statements upon adoption.

In March 2013, the FASB issued accounting guidance to resolve the 

diversity in practice for accounting for the release of the cumulative 

translation adjustment into net income when a parent either sells a 

part or all of its investment in a foreign entity or no longer holds a 

controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets that 

is a nonprofit activity or a business (other than a sale of real estate 

or conveyance of oil and gas mineral rights) within a foreign entity. 

This guidance is effective prospectively for fiscal years (and interim 

reporting periods within those years) beginning after December 15, 

2013, which would be our fiscal year ending September 30, 2015. 

We do not expect this guidance to have a material impact on our 

consolidated financial position or results of operations. 

In July 2013, the FASB issued accounting guidance on the 

presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating 

loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward 

exists. The guidance states that an unrecognized tax benefit, or 

a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, should be presented in 

the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for 

a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit 

carryforward. To the extent a net operating loss carryforward, a 

similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward is not available at the 

reporting date under the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction to settle 

any additional income taxes that would result from the disallowance 

of a tax position or the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction does not 

require the entity to use, and the entity does not intend to use, the 

deferred tax asset for such purpose, the unrecognized tax benefit 

should be presented in the financial statements as a liability and 

should not be combined with deferred tax assets. This guidance 

is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, 

beginning after December 15, 2013, which would be our fiscal 

year ended September 30, 2015. This guidance should be applied 

prospectively to all unrecognized tax benefits that exist at the 

effective date. Retrospective application is permitted. The adoption 

of this guidance is not expected to have a significant impact on our 

consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In April 2014, the FASB issued an amendment to the financial 

reporting of discontinued operations. The amendments in this 

update changed the criteria for reporting discontinued operations 

while enhancing disclosures in this area. It also addresses sources 

of confusion and inconsistent application related to the financial 

reporting of discontinued operations guidance in U.S. GAAP. Under 

the new guidance, only disposals representing a strategic shift in 

operations that have a major effect on the organization’s operations 

and financial results should be presented as discontinued operations. 

Examples include a disposal of a major geographic area, a major line 

of business, or a major equity method investment. In addition, the 

new guidance requires expanded disclosures about discontinued 

operations that will provide financial statement users with more 

information about the assets, liabilities, income, and expenses of 

discontinued operations. The new guidance also requires disclosure 

of the pre-tax income attributable to a disposal of a significant part 

of an organization that does not qualify for discontinued operations 

reporting. This disclosure will provide users with information 

about the ongoing trends in a reporting organization’s results from 

continuing operations. The amendments in this update are effective 

in the first quarter of 2015, which would be our fiscal year end 

September 30, 2016. Early adoption is permitted for disposals that 

have not been previously reported as discontinued operations.
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In May 2014, the FASB issued a new standard on revenue 

recognition that supersedes previously issued revenue recognition 

guidance. This standard provides a five-step approach to be applied 

to all contracts with customers and requires expanded disclosures 

about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue (and 

the related cash flows) arising from customer contracts, significant 

judgments and changes in judgments used in applying the revenue 

model and the assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or 

fulfill a contract. This new standard is effective for us beginning in 

fiscal year 2018. Early application is not permitted. The standard 

permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect 

transition method therefore we are evaluating the effect that this new 

guidance will have on our consolidated financial statements and 

related disclosures. We have not yet selected a transition method 

nor have we determined the effect of the standard on our ongoing 

financial reporting.

In June 2014, the FASB issued an amendment to the topic 

regarding share-based payments and instances where terms of 

an award provide that a performance target can be achieved after 

the requisite service period. This guidance has been provided to 

resolve the diversity in practice concerning employee share-

based payments that contain performance targets that could be 

achieved after the requisite service period. The updated guidance 

requires that a performance target that affects vesting and that 

can be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a 

performance condition. Compensation cost should be recognized in 

the period in which it becomes probable that the performance target 

will be achieved and is attributable to the periods for which service 

has been rendered. If the performance target becomes probable of 

being achieved before the end of the service period, the remaining 

unrecognized compensation cost for which requisite service has not 

yet been rendered is recognized prospectively over the remaining 

service period. The total amount of compensation cost recognized 

during and after the service period should reflect the number of 

awards that are expected to vest and should be adjusted to reflect 

those awards that ultimately vest. The updated guidance is effective 

for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015, 

with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this guidance is not 

expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial 

position or results of operations.

C. EARNINGS PER SHARE
We compute basic earnings per share by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the 

period. Diluted earnings per common and potential common share includes the weighted average of additional shares associated with 

the incremental effect of dilutive restricted stock and restrictive stock units, as prescribed by the FASB guidance on earnings per share.

The following table reconciles basic and diluted weighted average shares used in the computation of earnings per share for the years 

ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands, except per share data): 

Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012

Numerator: 	 	 	

Income from continuing operations 	 $	 19,620 	 $	 39,739 	          $	 28,743

Income from discontinued operations 9,604 2,337 914

Net income 	 $	 29,224 	 $	 42,076 	 $	 29,657

Denominator: 	 	 	

Weighted average basic shares 12,003 11,948 11,850

Dilutive effect of restricted stock units 55 46 75

Weighted average diluted shares with assumed conversions 12,058 11,994 11,925

Net earnings per share: 	 	 	

Continuing operations 	 $	 1.63 	 $	 3.32 	          $	 2.43

Discontinued operations  0.80  0.20 0.07

Basic earnings per share 	 $	 2.43 	 $	 3.52 	           $	 2.50

Continuing operations 	 $	 1.62 	 $	 3.32 	          $	 2.41

Discontinued operations 0.80 0.19 0.08

Diluted earnings per share 	 $	 2.42 	 $	 3.51 	          $	 2.49
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D. DETAIL OF SELECTED BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Activity in our allowance for doubtful accounts consisted of the 

following (in thousands):

September 30, 2014 2013

Balance at beginning of period $	 572 	 $	 1,297

Bad debt expense/(recovery) 1,074 (544)

Uncollectible accounts written off,  
net of recoveries (58) (171)

Change in foreign currency translation (11) (10)

Balance at end of period $		 1,577 	 $	 572

Inventories
The components of inventories are summarized below (in thousands): 

September 30, 2014 2013

Raw materials, parts and 
subassemblies 	 $	 35,349 	 $	30,077

Work-in-progress 2,035 3,818

Provision for excess and obsolete 
inventory (4,569) (4,932)

Total inventories 	 $	 32,815 	 $	28,963

Cost and Estimated Earnings on Uncompleted Contracts
The components of costs and estimated earnings and related 

amounts billed on uncompleted contracts are summarized below 

(in thousands):

September 30, 2014 2013

Costs incurred on uncompleted 
contracts 	 $	 604,939 	 $	 618,570

Estimated earnings 157,562 159,962

762,501 778,532

Less: Billings to date (715,233) (747,446)

Net underbilled position 	 $	 47,268 	 $	 31,086

Included in the accompanying balance  
sheets under the following captions:	

Costs and estimated earnings in excess 
of billings on uncompleted contracts – 
underbilled 	 $	 95,970 	 $	 79,420

Billings in excess of costs and 
estimated earnings on uncompleted 
contracts – overbilled (48,702) (48,334)

Net underbilled position 	 $	 47,268 	 $	 31,086

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are summarized below (in thousands): 

September 30, 2014 2013
Range of Asset 

Lives

Land 	 $	 23,545 	 $	 24,022 	 —

Buildings and 
improvements 100,901 79,621 	 3 - 39 Years

Machinery and 
equipment 100,922 71,808 	 3 - 15 Years

Furniture and fixtures 3,852 2,736 	 3 - 10 Years

Construction in 
process 15,878 48,301

 
	 —

	 $	245,098 	 $	 226,488 		

Less: Accumulated 
depreciation (88,202) (81,993)

Total property, plant 
and equipment, net 	 $	156,896 	 $	 144,495 		

The increase in buildings and improvements and machinery and 

equipment was primarily the result of construction of the new 

facilities in Houston, Texas, and Acheson, Alberta, Canada.

There were no assets under capital lease as of September 30, 2014; 

however, at September 30, 2013, we had assets under capital 

lease of $0.5 million, with related accumulated depreciation of $0.5 

million which was included in property and equipment. Depreciation 

expense from continuing operations, including the depreciation of 

capital leases, was $11.4 million, $8.5 million and $10.5 million for 

fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Warranty Accrual
Activity in our product warranty accrual consisted of the following  

(in thousands):

September 30, 2014 2013

Balance at beginning of period 	 $	 5,282 	 $	 5,548

Increase to warranty expense 3,237 4,020

Deduction for warranty charges (3,892) (4,321)

Increase (decrease) due to foreign  
currency translations (70) 35

Balance at end of period 	 $	 4,557 	 $	 5,282

E. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Our intangible assets consist of goodwill, which is not being 

amortized, purchased technology (6- to 7-year useful lives) and trade 

names (10-year useful life), which are amortized over their estimated 

useful lives. We test for impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 

annually, or immediately if conditions indicate that impairment could 

exist. No impairment was identified as a result of performing our 

annual impairment test of goodwill for Fiscal 2014 or 2013.
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Intangible assets balances, subject to amortization, at September 30, 2014 and 2013, consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30, 2014 September 30, 2013

Gross Carrying 
Value

Accumulated 
Amortization 

Net Carrying 
Value

Gross Carrying 
Value

Accumulated 
Amortization 

Net Carrying 
Value

Purchased technology 	 $	 11,749 	 $	 (9,918)	 $	 1,831 	 $	 11,749 	 $	 (9,489)	 $	 2,260

Trade name 1,136 (1,063) 73 1,136 (967) 169

Supply agreement — — — 17,580 (8,397) 9,183

Total 	 $	12,885 	 $	(10,981)	 $	 1,904 	 $	30,465 	 $	(18,853)	 $	 11,612

Amortization of intangible assets recorded for the years ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, was $0.8 million, $1.7 million and 

$2.6 million, respectively. 

Estimated amortization expense for each of the five subsequent 

fiscal years is expected to be (in thousands):

Year Ending September 30, Total

2015 	 $	 449

2016 376

2017 376

2018 376

2019 327

On August 7, 2006, we purchased certain assets related to the 

manufacturing of ANSI medium-voltage switchgear and circuit 

breaker business from General Electric Company (GE). In connection 

with the acquisition, we entered into a 15-year supply agreement 

with GE pursuant to which GE would purchase from the Company 

all of its requirements for ANSI medium-voltage switchgear and 

circuit breakers and other related equipment and components 

(the Products). In connection with the acquisition, we recorded an 

intangible asset related to this supply agreement. On December 

30, 2013, the Company and GE amended the supply agreement 

to allow GE to manufacture similar Products for sale immediately 

and allow GE to begin purchasing Products from other suppliers 

beginning December 31, 2014. In return, GE paid us $10 million 

upon execution of the amended supply agreement and agreed 

to pay an additional $7 million over three years, subject to certain 

conditions. We have $2.3 million recorded in other current assets 

and the remaining $4.7 million is recorded as a long-term receivable. 

We wrote off the intangible asset related to the original supply 

agreement and recorded a deferred credit in the amount of $8.1 

million, the amount by which the total proceeds from GE exceeded 

the unamortized balance of our intangible asset. We are amortizing 

this deferred credit over the four-year life of the agreement and have 

recognized the $1.5 million gain in other income in Fiscal 2014.

F. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of the following (in thousands): 

September 30, 2014 2013

Industrial development revenue bonds 	 $	 3,200 	 $	 3,600

Capital lease obligations — 16

Subtotal long-term debt and capital lease 
obligations 3,200 3,616

Less: current portion (400) (416)

Total long-term debt and capital lease 
obligations 	 $	 2,800 	 $	 3,200

The annual maturities of long-term debt as of September 30, 2014, 

were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending September 30,
Long-Term  

Debt Maturities

2015 	 $	 400

2016 400

2017 400

2018 400

2019 400

Thereafter 1,200

Total long-term debt maturities 	 $	 3,200

U.S. Revolver
In Fiscal 2014, we amended and restated our existing credit 

agreement (Amended Credit Agreement) with a major domestic bank. 

We entered into this Amended Credit Agreement to, among other 

things, allow for the payment of dividends and to extend the expiration 

date of the facility. The Amended Credit Agreement provides for a 

$75.0 million revolving credit facility (U.S. Revolver). Obligations are 

collateralized by the stock of certain of our subsidiaries. 

The interest rate for amounts outstanding under the Amended 

Credit Agreement for the U.S. Revolver is a floating rate based upon 

the higher of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5%, the bank’s prime 

rate, or the Eurocurrency rate plus 1.00%. Once the applicable rate 

is determined, a margin ranging up to 1.75%, as determined by our 

consolidated leverage ratio, is added to the applicable rate. 

The U.S. Revolver provides for the issuance of letters of credit which 

reduce the amounts that may be borrowed under this revolver. The 

amount available under the U.S. Revolver was reduced by $21.5 

million for our outstanding letters of credit at September 30, 2014.
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There were no borrowings outstanding under the U.S. Revolver as 

of September 30, 2014. Amounts available under the U.S. Revolver 

were $53.5 million at September 30, 2014. The U.S. Revolver 

expires on December 31, 2018. 

The Amended Credit Agreement contains certain restrictive and 

maintenance-type covenants, such as restrictions on the amount 

of capital expenditures allowed. It also contains financial covenants 

defining various financial measures and the levels of these measures 

with which we must comply, as well as a “material adverse change” 

clause. A “material adverse change” is defined as a material change 

in our operations, business, properties, liabilities or condition 

(financial or otherwise) or a material impairment of our ability to 

perform our obligations under our credit agreements. 

The Amended Credit Agreement is collateralized by a pledge of 100% 

of the voting capital stock of each of our domestic subsidiaries and 

66% of the voting capital stock of each non-domestic subsidiary, 

excluding Powell Canada. The Amended Credit Agreement provides 

for customary events of default and carries cross-default provisions 

with other existing debt agreements. If an event of default (as defined 

in the Amended Credit Agreement) occurs and is continuing, on 

the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Amended 

Credit Agreement, amounts outstanding under the Amended Credit 

Agreement may be accelerated and may become immediately due 

and payable. As of September 30, 2014, we were in compliance 

with all of the financial covenants of the Amended Credit Agreement.

Canadian Revolver 
We have a $9.0 million credit agreement with a major international 

bank in Canada (the Canadian Revolver) to provide working capital 

support and letters of credit for our operations in Canada. The 

Canadian Revolver provides for the issuance of letters of credit 

which reduce the amounts that may be borrowed under this revolver. 

There were no outstanding letters of credit at September 30, 2014.

There were no borrowings outstanding under the Canadian 

Revolver as of September 30, 2014 and amounts available under 

the Canadian Revolver were $9.0 million at September 30, 2014. 

The Canadian Revolver expires on February 28, 2015. The interest 

rate for amounts outstanding under the Canadian Revolver is a 

floating interest rate based upon either the Canadian Prime Rate, 

or the lender’s Bankers’ Acceptance Rate. Once the applicable rate 

is determined, a margin of 0.50% to 1.75%, as determined by our 

consolidated leverage ratio, is added to the applicable rate.

The principal financial covenants are consistent with those described 

in our Amended Credit Agreement. The Canadian Revolver contains 

a “material adverse effect” clause. A “material adverse effect” is 

defined as a material change in the operations of Powell or Powell 

Canada in relation to our financial condition, property, business 

operations, expected net cash flows, liabilities or capitalization.

The Canadian Revolver is secured by the assets of our Canadian 

operations and provides for customary events of default and carries 

cross-default provisions with our existing debt agreements. If an 

event of default (as defined in the Canadian Revolver) occurs and is 

continuing, per the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in 

the Canadian Revolver, amounts outstanding under the Canadian 

Revolver may be accelerated and may become immediately due 

and payable. As of September 30, 2014, we were in compliance 

with all of the financial covenants of the Canadian Revolver.

Industrial Development Revenue Bonds
We borrowed $8.0 million in October 2001 through a loan agreement 

funded with proceeds from tax-exempt industrial development 

revenue bonds (Bonds). These Bonds were issued by the Illinois 

Development Finance Authority and were used for the completion 

of our Northlake, Illinois facility. Pursuant to the Bond issuance, a 

reimbursement agreement between us and a major domestic bank 

required an issuance by the bank of an irrevocable direct-pay letter 

of credit (Bond LC), as collateral, to the Bonds’ trustee to guarantee 

payment of the Bonds’ principal and interest when due. The Bond 

LC is subject to both early termination and extension provisions 

customary to such agreements, as well as various covenants, for 

which we were in compliance at June 30, 2014. While the Bonds 

mature in 2021, the reimbursement agreement requires annual 

redemptions of $0.4 million that commenced on October 25, 

2002. A sinking fund is used for the redemption of the Bonds. At 

September 30, 2014, the balance in the restricted sinking fund 

was approximately $0.4 million and was recorded in cash and cash 

equivalents. The Bonds bear interest at a floating rate determined 

weekly by the Bonds’ remarketing agent, which was the underwriter 

for the Bonds and is an affiliate of the bank. This interest rate was 

0.20% as of September 30, 2014. 

G. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Long-Term Debt
See Note F herein for a discussion of our long-term debt. 

Leases
We lease certain offices, facilities and equipment under operating 

leases expiring at various dates through 2023. 

At September 30, 2014, the minimum annual rental commitments 

under leases having terms in excess of one year were as follows  

(in thousands):

Year Ending September 30,
Operating

Leases

2015 	 $	 4,155

2016 3,183

2017 2,307

2018 1,600

2019 1,436

Thereafter 5,586

Total lease commitments 	 $	 18,267

Lease expense for all operating leases was $3.9 million, $4.7 million 

and $4.3 million for Fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The 

lease on our previous Canadian facility does not expire until July 

2023; however, we have sublet that facility through July 2019. 
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We recorded a $1.7 million loss in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 

2013 for the net difference between our annual lease costs and 

the expected receipts from the anticipated sublease, as well as the 

write-off of leasehold improvements.

Letters of Credit and Bonds
Certain customers require us to post bank letter of credit guarantees 

or performance bonds issued by a surety. These guarantees and 

performance bonds assure that we will perform under the terms of 

our contract. In the event of default, the counterparty may demand 

payment from the bank under a letter of credit or performance by 

the surety under a performance bond. To date, there have been no 

significant expenses related to either letters of credit or performance 

bonds for the periods reported. We were contingently liable for 

secured and unsecured letters of credit of $21.5 million as of 

September 30, 2014. We also had performance and maintenance 

bonds totaling $298.7 million that were outstanding, with additional 

bonding capacity of $301.3 million available, at September 30, 2014.

In October 2014 we extended our $16.2 million facility agreement 

(Facility Agreement) between Powell (UK) Limited and a large 

international bank. This Facility Agreement provides Powell (UK) the 

ability to enter into bank guarantees as well as forward exchange 

contracts and currency options. At September 30, 2014, we had 

outstanding guarantees totaling $2.6 million under this Facility 

Agreement. Amounts available under this Facility Agreement were 

$13.6 million as of September 30, 2014.

The Facility Agreement provides for financial covenants and 

customary events of default, and carries cross-default provisions 

with our Amended Credit Facility. If an event of default (as defined 

in the Facility Agreement) occurs and is continuing, per the terms 

and subject to the conditions set forth in the Facility Agreement, 

obligations outstanding under the Facility Agreement may be 

accelerated and may become or be declared immediately due and 

payable. As of September 30, 2014, we were in compliance with all 

of the financial covenants of the Facility Agreement. 

Litigation
We are involved in various legal proceedings, claims and other 

disputes arising in the ordinary course of business which, in general, 

are subject to uncertainties and in which the outcomes are not 

predictable. Although we can give no assurance about the outcome 

of pending or threatened litigation and the effect such outcomes 

may have on us, management believes that any ultimate liability 

resulting from the outcome of such proceedings, to the extent not 

otherwise provided or covered by insurance, will not have a material 

adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of 

operations or liquidity. 

In March 2013, we settled a lawsuit we had filed against the previous 

owners of Powell Canada in the amount of $1.7 million, which was 

received in April 2013 and is recorded as gain on settlement in the 

accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations.

H. INCOME TAXES
The components of the income tax provision were as follows (in 

thousands): 

Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012

Current: 	 	 	

Federal 	 $	 12,184 	 $	10,919 	 $	 17,648

State 2,226 1,757 1,513

Foreign (130) 1,575 331

14,280 14,251 19,492

Deferred:

Federal (1,798) (580) (1,853)

State (311) (114) 24

Foreign (1,103) (6,170) 393

(3,212) (6,864) (1,436)

Total income tax provision 	 $	11,068 	 $	 7,387 	 $	18,056

Income before income taxes was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012

U.S. 	 $	 35,131 	 $	 43,299 	 $	 52,450

Other than U.S. (4,443) 3,827 (5,651)

Income before income taxes	 $	 30,688 	 $	 47,126 	 $	 46,799   

A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. income tax rate and the effective 

income tax rate, as computed on earnings before income tax 

provision in each of the three years presented in the Consolidated 

Statements of Operations, was as follows:

Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012

Statutory rate 35% 35% 35%

State income taxes,  
net of federal benefit 3 2 2

International withholding tax — (1) (1)

Other permanent tax items 1 1 —

Foreign rate differential 1 (1) 1

Domestic production  
activities deduction (3) (3) (3)

Foreign valuation allowance  
and other (1) (17) 4

Effective rate 36% 16% 38%

Our provision for income taxes reflects an effective tax rate on pre-

tax earnings of 36% in Fiscal 2014 compared to 16% and 38% in 

Fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively. The effective tax rates for Fiscal 

2014 and 2012 are comparable while the effective tax rate in Fiscal 

2013 was materially lower, resulting from the release of a valuation 

allowance that was recorded against Canadian deferred tax assets. 

We have not recorded deferred income taxes on $19 million of 

undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries because of 

management’s intent to indefinitely reinvest such earnings. Upon 

distribution of these earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, 

we may be subject to U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding 

taxes. It is not practical, however, to estimate the amount of taxes 

that may be payable on the eventual remittance of these earnings.
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We are subject to income tax in the U.S., multiple state jurisdictions 

and certain international jurisdictions, primarily the U.K. and Canada. 

We do not consider any state in which we do business to be a 

major tax jurisdiction. We remain open to examination in the other 

jurisdictions as follows: Canada 2010 – 2013, United Kingdom 2013 

and the United States 2009 – 2013.

The net deferred income tax asset (liability) was comprised of the 

following (in thousands):

September 30, 2014 2013

Current deferred income taxes: 	 	

Gross assets 	 $	 5,297 	 $	 5,335

Gross liabilities — (845)

Net current deferred income tax asset 5,297 4,490

Noncurrent deferred income taxes: 	 	

Gross assets 11,532 9,016

Gross liabilities (110) —

Net noncurrent deferred income tax asset 11,422 9,016

Net deferred income tax asset 	 $	16,719 	 $	 13,506

The tax effect of temporary differences between U.S. GAAP 

accounting and federal income tax accounting creating deferred 

income tax assets and liabilities was as follows (in thousands):

September 30, 2014 2013

Deferred Tax Assets:

 Net operating loss 	 $	 6,236 	 $	 3,892

 Uniform capitalization and inventory 2,529 2,510

 Deferred compensation 1,611 1,297

 Stock-based compensation 1,529 1,291

 Reserve for accrued employee benefits 1,444 1,396

 Depreciation and amortization 1,217 944

 Warranty accrual 643 1,042

 Goodwill 474 1,198

 Postretirement benefits liability 252 396

 Allowance for doubtful accounts 495 163

 Workers’ compensation 128 185

 Accrued legal 65 57

 Credit carryforwards and other 1,109 845

 Gross deferred tax asset 17,732 15,216

 Less: valuation allowance (903) (865)

 Deferred tax asset 16,829 14,351

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

 Uncompleted contracts — (845)

 Other (110) —

 Deferred tax liabilities (110) (845)

  Net deferred tax asset 	 $	 16,719 	 $	13,506

At September 30, 2014, we had $24 million of gross foreign 

operating loss carryforwards which are subject to a 20-year 

carryforward period, the first of which will expire in 2031. At 

September 30, 2013, we released a valuation allowance that was 

recorded against Canadian deferred tax assets, resulting in a $7 

million tax benefit. Although our Canadian operations reported a loss 

for Fiscal 2014, we believe these deferred tax assets are more likely 

than not to be utilized by future taxable income. With the exception 

of the deferred tax assets related to certain foreign withholding taxes 

as well as the net operating losses of our Dutch entities, we believe 

that our other deferred tax assets are more likely than not realizable 

through future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences 

and our estimate of future taxable income. The recognition of 

deferred tax assets requires estimates related to future income and 

other assumptions regarding timing and future profitability. Estimates 

may change as new events occur, additional information becomes 

available or operating environments change.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of the 

unrecognized tax liabilities follows (in thousands):

Balance as of September 30, 2013 	 $	 3,845

Increases related to tax positions taken during  
the current period	 225

Increases related to tax positions taken during  
a prior period	 14

Decreases related to expirations of statute of limitations (58)

Balance as of September 30, 2014 	 $	 4,026

Our continuing policy is to recognize interest and penalties related 

to income tax matters as tax expense. The amount of interest and 

penalty expense recorded for the year ended September 30, 2014 

was not material.

During Fiscal 2013, prior year U.S. federal income tax returns were 

amended to reflect increased research and development credits, 

and unrecognized tax benefits related to these refund claims were 

recorded. Fiscal 2012 and 2011 tax returns, along with the refund 

claims, are currently under review by the Internal Revenue Service 

Joint Committee on Taxation (JCT). It is reasonably possible that 

the amount of unrecognized tax benefits related to our research and 

development credits will change during the next twelve months. In 

addition, management believes that it is reasonably possible that 

within the next 12 months other unrecognized tax benefits will 

decrease by approximately 1% due to the expiration of certain 

federal statutes of limitations.

Management believes that an adequate provision has been made 

for any adjustments that may result from tax examinations. However, 

the outcome of tax audits cannot be predicted with certainty. If any 

issues addressed in our tax audits are resolved in a manner not 

consistent with management’s expectations, we could be required 

to adjust our provision for income tax in the period such resolution 

occurs. Although timing of the resolution and/or closure of audits is 

highly uncertain, with the exception of the JCT review, we do not 

believe it is reasonably possible that our unrecognized tax benefits 

could materially change in the next 12 months.
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I. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Retirement Plans
We have defined employee contribution plans for substantially all 

of our U.S. employees (401(k) plan) and our Canadian employees 

(Registered Retirement Savings Plan). We recognized expenses 

under these plans primarily related to matching contributions of 

$5.3 million, $4.9 million and $4.2 million in Fiscal 2014, 2013 and 

2012, respectively.

Deferred Compensation
We offer a non-qualified deferred compensation plan to a select 

group of management and highly compensated individuals. The 

plan permits the deferral of up to 50% of a participant’s base 

salary and/or 100% of a participant’s annual incentive bonus. The 

deferrals are held in a separate trust, an irrevocable rabbi trust (the 

Rabbi Trust), which has been established to administer the plan. 

The Rabbi Trust is intended to be used as a source of funds to 

match respective funding obligations to participants. The assets of 

the trust are subject to the claims of our creditors in the event that 

we become insolvent. Consequently, the Rabbi Trust qualifies as a 

grantor trust for income tax purposes. We make periodic payments 

into company-owned life insurance policies held in this Rabbi Trust 

to fund the expected obligations arising under this plan. The assets 

and liabilities of the plan are recorded in other assets and deferred 

compensation, respectively, in the accompanying Consolidated 

Balance Sheets. Changes in the deferred compensation balance are 

charged to compensation expense. The plan is not qualified under 

Section 401 of the Internal Revenue code. We recorded $0.2 million 

in compensation expense related to this plan in Fiscal 2014. Total 

assets held by the trustee and deferred compensation liabilities were 

$3.5 million and $3.7 million, respectively, at September 30, 2014. 

Certain former executives were provided an executive benefit plan 

which provides for fixed payments upon normal retirement on or 

after age 65 and the completion of at least 10 years of continuous 

employment. The estimated present value of these payments were 

accrued over the service life of these individuals, and $0.5 million is 

recorded in deferred compensation related to this executive benefit 

plan. To assist in funding the deferred compensation liability, we 

have invested in corporate-owned life insurance policies. The cash 

surrender value of these policies is presented in other assets and 

was $4.4 million at September 30, 2014.

Retiree Medical Plan
We have a plan that extends health benefits to retirees that are also 

available to active employees under our existing health plans. This 

plan is unfunded. The plan provides coverage for employees with 

at least 10 years of service who are age 55 or older but less than 

65. The retiree is required to pay the COBRA rate less a subsidy 

provided by us based on years of service at the time of retirement. 

The unfunded liability was $0.7 million as of September 30, 2014 

and 2013 and our net periodic postretirement benefit costs have 

been less than $0.1 million for the last three fiscal years. Due to 

the immateriality of the costs and liabilities of this plan, no further 

disclosure is being presented.

J. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

We have the following stock-based compensation plans:

In February 2014, our stockholders approved and adopted at the 

Annual Meeting of Stockholders the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (the 

2014 Plan) which replaced our 2006 Equity Compensation Plan 

(2006 Plan). Persons eligible to receive awards under the 2014 

Plan include our officers and employees. The 2014 Plan authorizes 

stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted 

stock units and performance-based awards, as well as certain other 

awards. We have reserved 750,000 shares of common stock for 

issuance under the 2014 Plan. In Fiscal 2014, 4,778 shares were 

issued under the 2014 Plan and the total number of shares of 

common stock left available was 745,222 shares. In August 2012, 

45,000 shares of restricted stock were issued under the 2006 Plan 

to our new President and Chief Executive Officer. These shares were 

issued at a price of $39.11 per share and vest over a three-year 

period on each anniversary of the grant date. In June 2012, 2,000 

shares of restricted stock were issued under the 2006 Plan to the 

Chairman of the Board, who was an employee of the Company 

at the time the shares were issued. These shares were issued at 

a price of $37.50 per share and vest over a two-year period on 

each anniversary of the grant date. The 2006 Plan terminated in 

December 2013 and no further awards will be made under this plan.

In February 2014, our stockholders approved and adopted at the 

Annual Meeting of Stockholders the 2014 Non-Employee Director 

Equity Incentive Plan (the 2014 Director Plan), which replaced our 

former Restricted Stock Plan. Persons eligible to receive awards 

under the 2014 Director Plan are non-employee directors of the 

Board. The 2014 Director Plan authorizes stock options, stock 

appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, as well as 

certain other awards. Subject to certain conditions and restrictions 

as determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board and 

proportionate adjustments in the event of stock dividends, stock 

splits and similar corporate transactions, each eligible director 

will receive 2,000 shares of restricted stock annually. The annual 

restricted stock grants vest 50% per year over a two-year period 

on each anniversary of the grant date. We reserved 150,000 shares 

of common stock for issuance under the 2014 Director Plan and in 

February 2014, 16,000 shares of restricted stock were issued to 

our non-employee directors at a price of $66.15 per share under 

this plan. The total number of shares of common stock available for 

future awards under this plan was 134,000 shares as of September 

30, 2014. We did not issue any shares in Fiscal 2014 under the 

Restricted Stock Plan, however, in January 2013, 500 shares of 

restricted stock were issued to a newly appointed director at a price 

of $42.54 per share. In February 2013, 16,000 shares of restricted 

stock were issued to our directors at a price of $58.54 per share. In 

Fiscal 2012, 16,000 shares of restricted stock were issued to our 

directors at a price of $37.50 per share. The Restricted Stock Plan 

terminates in December 2014, and no further grants shall be made 

under this plan. 
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Restricted stock grants vest equally over their respective vesting 

period on each anniversary of the grant date and compensation 

expense is recognized over their respective vesting periods based 

on the price per share on the grant date. At September 30, 2014 

and 2013, there were 54,240 shares and 68,100 shares of unvested 

restricted stock outstanding. During the year ended September 30, 

2014, we recorded compensation expense of $1.3 million related 

to restricted stock grants. We recorded compensation expense of 

$2.1 million and $0.7 million related to restricted stock grants for the 

years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

We also issue restricted stock units (RSUs) to certain officers and key 

employees of the company. The RSUs vest over a three-year period 

from their date of issuance. The fair value of the RSUs is based on 

the closing price of our common stock as reported on the NASDAQ 

Global Market (NASDAQ) on the grant dates. Sixty percent of the 

actual amount of the RSUs earned will be based on the cumulative 

earnings as reported relative to the three-year performance cycle 

which begins October 1 of the year granted, and ranges from 0% 

to 150% of the target RSUs granted. The remaining forty percent 

of the RSUs are time-based and vest over a three-year period. At 

September 30, 2014, there were 106,845 RSUs outstanding. The 

RSUs do not have voting rights and do not receive dividends on 

common stock; additionally, the shares of common stock underlying 

the RSUs are not considered issued and outstanding until actually 

issued. In Fiscal 2014, 2,200 restricted stock units were issued 

under the 2006 Plan. We recorded compensation expense of $2.1 

million, $2.4 million and $1.5 million related to RSUs for the years 

ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Total RSU activity (number of shares) for the past three years is 

summarized below:

Number of 
Restricted 

Stock Units

Weighted  
Average  

Fair Value  
Per Share

Outstanding at September 30, 2011 69,378 	 $	 36.10

Granted 54,825 31.18

Vested (24,478) 38.71

Forfeited — —

Outstanding at September 30, 2012 99,725 	 $	 32.69

Granted 58,775 39.05

Vested (66,383) 34.00

Forfeited (10,562) 33.46

Outstanding at September 30, 2013 81,555 	 $	 38.66

Granted 57,200 66.15

Vested (29,832) 44.88

Forfeited (2,078) 56.34

Outstanding at September 30, 2014 106,845 	 $	 51.30

We record the amortization of non-vested restricted stock and 

restricted stock units as an increase to additional paid-in capital. 

As of September 30, 2014 and 2013, amounts not yet recognized 

related to non-vested stock totaled $2.4 million and $2.1 million, 

respectively. As of September 30, 2014, the total weighted average 

remaining contractual life of our restricted stock and RSU’s is 0.87 

years and 1.15 years, respectively. 

K. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
We measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value. 

Fair value is defined as an “exit price” which represents the 

amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 

a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as 

of the measurement date. As such, fair value is a market-based 

measurement that should be determined based on assumptions 

that market participants would use in valuing an asset or liability. 

The accounting guidance requires the use of valuation techniques to 

measure fair value that maximize the use of observable inputs and 

minimize the use of unobservable inputs. As a basis for considering 

such assumptions and inputs, a fair value hierarchy has been 

established that identifies and prioritizes three levels of inputs to be 

used in measuring fair value.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in 

active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that 

are observable either directly or indirectly, including: quoted prices 

for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices 

for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not 

active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by 

observable market data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no 

market data and require the reporting entity to develop its own 

assumptions.
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The following table summarizes the fair value of our assets that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 

2014 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at September 30, 2014

Quoted Prices in Active  
Markets for Identical Assets

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

Fair Value at
September 30, 2014

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets

Cash equivalents	 	 $	 10,535 	 $	 — 	 $	 — 	 $	 10,535

Deferred compensation	 724 2,802 — 3,526

Liabilities:	

Deferred compensation — 3,688 — 3,688

The following table summarizes the fair value of our assets that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 

2013 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at September 30, 2014

Quoted Prices in Active  
Markets for Identical Assets

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

Fair Value at
September 30, 2014

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets

Cash equivalents	 	 $	 10,531 	 $	 — 	 $	 — 	 $	 10,531

Deferred compensation	 793 2,069 — 2,862

Liabilities:	

Deferred compensation — 2,862 — 2,862

Cash equivalents, primarily funds held in money market savings instruments, are reported at their current carrying value which approximates 

fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments and are included in cash and cash equivalents in our Consolidated Balance 

Sheets. 

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments 
Fair value guidance requires certain fair value disclosures be presented 

in both interim and annual reports. The estimated fair value amounts 

of financial instruments have been determined using available market 

information and valuation methodologies described below. 

Deferred Compensation – We hold investments in an irrevocable 

Rabbi Trust for our deferred compensation plan. These assets 

include both mutual fund investments and company-owned life 

insurance policies. Under the plan, participants designate investment 

options to serve as the basis for measurement of the notional value 

of their accounts. The fair values of the underlying securities of 

these funds are based on quoted market prices and are categorized 

as Level I in the fair value measurement hierarchy. The company-

owned life insurance policies are valued at cash surrender value and 

are therefore categorized as Level 2 in the fair value measurement 

hierarchy.

Industrial Development Revenue Bonds – The fair value of our long-

term debt depends primarily on the coupon rate of our industrial 

development revenue bonds. The carrying value of our long-term 

debt at September 30, 2013, approximates fair value based on 

the current coupon rate of the bonds, which is reset weekly. It is 

classified as a Level 2 input in the fair value measurement hierarchy 

as there is an active market for the trading of these industrial 

development revenue bonds. 

There were no transfers between levels with the fair value 

measurement hierarchy during Fiscal 2014.
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L. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

All revenues represent sales to unaffiliated customers and are 

summarized for the last three fiscal years by region in the table 

below:

Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012

United States 	 $	365,085 	 $	 374,453 	 $	388,977

Canada 137,684 113,391 92,656

Middle East and Africa 84,330 61,618 79,778

Europe (including former 
Soviet Union) 34,920 24,092 24,857

Far East 15,127 35,388 12,418

Mexico, Central and  
South America 10,668 31,925 92,055

Total revenues 	 $	 647,814 	 $	640,867 	 $	 690,741

September 30, 2014 2013

Long-lived assets: 	 	

United States 	 $	 99,711 	 $	 96,824

Canada 51,493 41,777

United Kingdom 5,692 5,894

Total 	 $	156,896 	 $	144,495

Long-lived assets consist of property, plant and equipment net of 

accumulated depreciation.

M. QUARTERLY INFORMATION

The table below sets forth the unaudited consolidated operating results by fiscal quarter for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 

(in thousands, except per share data):

2014 Quarters First Second Third Fourth 2014

Revenues 	 $	171,872 	 $	162,295 	 $	150,800 	 $	162,847 	 $	 647,814

Gross profit 35,158 	 34,928 29,642 25,746 125,474

Income from continuing operations 7,268 6,976 2,947 2,429 19,620

Net income 8,255 15,593 2,947 2,429 29,224

Earnings per share – continuing operations

 Basic 	 $	 0.61 	 $	 0.58 	 $	 0.25 	 $	 0.20 	 $	 1.63

 Diluted 	 $	 0.60 	 $	 0.58 	 $	 0.24 	 $	 0.20 	 $	 1.62

 Earnings per share: (1)

 Basic 	 $	 0.69 	 $	 1.30 	 $	 0.25 	 $	 0.20 	 $	 2.43

Diluted	 	 $	 0.68 	 $	 1.29 	 $	 0.24 	 $	 0.20 	 $	 2.42

2013 Quarters First Second Third Fourth 2012

Revenues 	 $	146,858 	 $	146,041 	 $	171,733 	 $	176,235 	 $	640,867

Gross profit 32,402 29,543 36,593 39,954 138,492

Income from continuing operations 7,120 6,202 9,083 17,334 39,739

Net income 7,385 6,818 9,305 18,568 42,076

Earnings per share — continuing operations:

 Basic 	 $	 0.60 	 $	 0.52 	 $	 0.76 	 $	 1.45 	 $	 3.32

 Dluted 	 $	 0.60 	 $	 0.52 	 $	 0.76 	 $	 1.44 	 $	 3.32

 Earnings per share: (2)

 Basic 	 $	 0.62 	 $	 0.57 	 $	 0.78 	 $	 1.55 	 $	 3.52

Diluted	 	 $	 0.62 	 $	 0.57 	 $	 0.78 	 $	 1.54 	 $	 3.51

(1)	 The increase in earnings per share for the second quarter of Fiscal 2014 was primarily due to the sale of Transdyn. For additional 

information on this disposition, see Note N.

(2)	 The increase in earnings per share for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2013 was primarily driven by the release of our Canadian valuation 

allowance. For an explanation of the effective tax rate in Fiscal 2013, see Note H.

The sum of the individual earnings per share amounts may not agree with year-to-date earnings per share as each period’s computation is 

based on the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period.
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N. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On January 15, 2014, we sold our wholly owned subsidiary 

Transdyn to a global provider of electronic toll collection systems, 

headquartered in Vienna, Austria. The purchase price from the sale 

of this subsidiary totaled $16.0 million, of which we received cash 

of $14.4 million. The remaining $1.6 million was placed into an 

escrow account until April 2015, to be released subject to certain 

contingent obligations, and was recorded to other assets. We 

received additional cash of $0.4 million after the final working capital 

adjustment was calculated in March 2014. We recorded a gain on 

this transaction of $8.6 million, net of tax, which has been included 

in income from discontinued operations in Fiscal 2014 in the 

accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Transdyn’s 

results were previously reflected in the Process Control Systems 

business segment. 

We reclassified the assets and liabilities of Transdyn as held for 

sale within the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of 

September 30, 2013 and presented the results of these operations 

as income from discontinued operations, net of tax, for each of the 

accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 

Summary comparative financial results of discontinued operations 

were as follows (in thousands).

Year Ended September 30, 2014 2013 2012

Revenues 	 $	 13,923 	 $	 33,905 	 $	26,452

Income from discontinued 
operations, net of tax of 
$633, $1,269 and $522, 
respectively 	 $	 1,041 	 $	 2,337 	 $	 914

Gain on sale of discontinued 
operations, net of tax of 
$5,218 8,563 — —

Net income from 
discontinued operations,  
net of tax 	 $	 9,604 	 $	 2,337 	 $	 914

Earnings per share information:

Basic 0.80 0.20 0.07

Diluted 	 $	 0.80 	 $	 0.19 	 $	 0.08

As of September 30, 2013

Current assets:	

Cash and cash equivelents 	 $	 337

Accounts receivable 7,346

Contracts in progress 7,201

Inventories, net 20

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 505

Current assets held for sale 	 $	 15,409

Long-term assets:

Property, plant and equipment, net 	 $	 93

Other assets 51

Long-term assets held for sale 	 $	 144

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 	 $	 2,973

Accrued salaries, bonuses and commissions 1,675

Billings in excess of cost 11,867

Other accrued expenses and liabilities 1,333

Current liabilities held for sale 	 $	 17,848

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term liabilities held for sale 	 $	 204
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CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We have established and maintain a system of disclosure controls 

and procedures that are designed to provide reasonable assurance 

that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed with the 

SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended 

(Exchange Act), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported 

within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC 

and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our 

management, including our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief 

Financial Officer (CFO), as appropriate, to allow timely decisions 

regarding required disclosures.

Management, with the participation of our CEO and CFO, has 

evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our 

disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) 

and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period 

covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on such 

evaluation, our CEO and CFO have each concluded that, as of 

September 30, 2014, the end of the period covered by this Annual 

Report on Form 10-K, our disclosure controls and procedures were 

effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required 

to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the 

Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported 

within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and 

that such information is accumulated and communicated to our 

management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to allow 

timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 

effective internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 

13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our system of internal control 

was designed using a top-down risk-based approach to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 

and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Due 

to its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting 

may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk 

that controls may become ineffective due to changes in conditions 

or deterioration in the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures.

Management of the Company has assessed the effectiveness of 

our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 

2014. Management evaluated the effectiveness of our internal 

control over financial reporting based on the criteria in Internal 

Control – Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee 

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). 

Based on management’s evaluation, management has concluded 

that our internal control over financial reporting was effective at the 

reasonable assurance level as of September 30, 2014, based on 

criteria in Internal Control – Integrated Framework (1992) issued by 

the COSO.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public 

accounting firm, has audited and issued their report on the 

effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of 

September 30, 2014, which appears in their report on the financial 

statements included herein. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial 

reporting that occurred during the last fiscal quarter that have 

materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our 

internal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Powell Industries, Inc.:
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, of comprehensive 

income, of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Powell Industries, Inc. and 

its subsidiaries at September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the 

period ended September 30, 2014 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in 

our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2014, 

based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 

the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective 

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in 

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements 

and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance 

with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform 

the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective 

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, 

on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used 

and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 

weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our 

audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits 

provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance 

of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 

of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas

December 3, 2014



Design: Pennebaker.com

Powell Industries, Inc.
8550 Mosley Road
Houston, Texas 77075-1180
713.944.6900

Michael A. Lucas
President and  
Chief Executive Officer

Neil Dial
Senior Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer

Don R. Madison
Executive Vice President,  
Chief Financial and  
Administrative Officer

Milburn E. Honeycutt
Vice President,
Controller and  
Chief Accounting Officer

Corporate Counsel
Winstead PC 
600 Travis Street, Suite 1100
Houston, Texas 77002-2900
713.650.8400

Independent Public Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1000 Louisiana Street 
Suite 5800 
Houston TX 77002 
713.356.4000

CORPORATE INFORMATION



Powell Industries, Inc.
8550 Mosley Road

Houston, Texas 77075-1180

powellind.com


